
Small Business Regulatory Review Board Meeting 

August 15, 2019 

10:00 a.m. 

Leipapa A Kamehameha Building 

(State Office Tower) 

Conference Room 405 – 235 South Beretania Street, 

Honolulu, HI 96813 

 

  



SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD 

Department of Business, Economic Development & Tourism (DBEDT)      Tel: 808 586-2419 
No. 1 Capitol District Building, 250 S. Hotel Street, Fifth Floor, Honolulu, HI  96813 
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2359, Honolulu, HI  96804 
Email: dbedt.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov  
Website: dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb 

David Y. Ige 
Governor 

Michael McCartney 
DBEDT Director 

Members 
Robert Cundiff 

Chairperson 
O‘ahu 

Garth Yamanaka 
Vice Chairperson 

Hawai’i 

Willian Lydgate 
2nd Vice Chairperson 

Kaua’i 

Harris Nakamoto 
O‘ahu 

Dr. Nancy Atmospera-
Walch 
O‘ahu 

Mary Albitz 
Maui 

James (Kimo) Lee 
Hawai’i 

Jonathan Shick 
  O’ahu 

Director, DBEDT 
Voting Ex Officio 

AGENDA 
Thursday, August 15, 2019  10:00 a.m. 

Leiopapa A Kamehameha Building - State Office Tower 
Conference Room 405 

235 South Beretania Street, Honolulu, HI  96813 

I. Call to Order

II. Approval of July 18, 2019 Meeting Minutes

III. Old Business – After Public Hearing

A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments and the Small Business
Statement After Public Hearing to Title 8, Department of Liquor Control,
Subtitle 1, Liquor Commission, promulgated by Department of Liquor
Control, County of Maui, as follows – Discussion Leader – Mary Albitz

i. Chapter 101, Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of Intoxicating
Liquor of the County of Maui;

ii. Chapter 102, Rules Governing the Administrative Practices and
Procedures of the Liquor Commission and Liquor Control
Adjudication Board of the County of Maui

IV. Old Business – Before Public Hearing

A. Request by Mel Wills III, Holo Holo Charters, on behalf of the Hanalei 
Department of Land and Natural Resources Permitted Boaters for review of 
recommended revisions to the Proposed Amendments to Part IV, Rules and 
Regulations Governing Commercial Boating Activities at County Beach 
Parks, Sections 30 to 36, promulgated by County of Kauai Department of 
Parks and Recreation – Discussion Leader – Will Lydgate

V. New Business – Before Public Hearing

A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to Hawaii Administrative 
Rules (HAR) Title 13 Chapter 234, Section 26, Fees and Charges, 
promulgated by Department of Land and Natural Resources (DLNR) –
Discussion Leader – Mary Albitz

VI. Regulation for Review

A. Discussion and Action on Response from DLNR from the May 16, 2019 Board 
Meeting on Whether Bottomfish Restricted Fishing Areas Should be Opened 
and/or Disestablished under HAR Title 13 Chapter 94, Bottomfish 
Management – Discussion Leader – Mary Albitz / Rob Cundiff



Small Business Regulatory Review Board 
August 15, 2019 

Page 2 
 
 

 
 
VII. Administrative Matters 
 

A. Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in 
accordance with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, Hawaii Revised 
Statutes, as follows: 
i. Proposed Appropriations Request for the 2020 Legislative Session 
ii. Launch of Board’s New Website 
iii. Meetings with Board Members and State Department Directors 

 
VIII. Next Meeting: Thursday, September 19, 2019, at 10:00 a.m., 235 South Beretania 

Street, Leiopapa A Kamehameha Building (State Office Tower), Conference Room 
405, Honolulu, HI  96813 

 
IX. Adjournment 

If you require special assistance or auxiliary aid and/or services to participate in the public 
hearing process (i.e., sign language, interpreter, wheelchair accessibility, or parking 
designated for the disabled), please call (808) 586-2419 at least three (3) business days prior 
to the meeting so arrangements can be made. 

 



II. Approval of July 18, 2019 Meeting Minutes



1 
 

    Approved: ______________________________ 

 
Small Business Regulatory Review Board 

 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT 
July 18, 2019 
Conference Room 405, 235 South Beretania Street, Leiopapa A Kamehameha Building 
(State Office Tower), Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Cundiff called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m., with a 
quorum present.     

STAFF: DBEDT                    Office of the Attorney General 
    Dori Palcovich 
  

      Jennifer Polk-Waihee 

  

II. APPROVAL OF JUNE 20, 2019 MINUTES 
 
Ms. Albitz made a motion to accept the June 20, 2019 minutes, as presented.  Mr. Ritchie 
seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed.       

 
III. OLD BUSINESS – After Public Hearing 

 
A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments and the Small Business 

Statement After Public Hearing to HAR Title 4 Chapter 66, Pesticides, 
promulgated by Department of Agriculture (DoAg)  

 
Discussion leader and Second Vice Chair Lydgate stated that these rules are after public 
hearing where much feedback was received from testifiers.  Ms. Victoria Matsumura, Case 
Developer at DoAg, explained that under Act 45, SLH 2018, a few more changes to the rules 
were made since the first time these rules were in front of this Board.   
 
Six hearings were held beginning in November 2018; two on the Big Island, one on Oahu, 
one on Molokai and one on Maui.  Twenty-one written comments and recommendations for 
additional rule changes were made; however, DoAg was unable to change some of the 
recommendations due to the statute’s mandates.   
 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: 
 Robert Cundiff, Chair 
 Garth Yamanaka, Vice Chair 
 William Lydgate, Second Vice Chair 
 Dr. Nancy Atmospera-Walch 
 Mary Albitz 
 Jonathan Shick 
 James (Kimo) Lee  
 Mark Ritchie 
 

       
ABSENT MEMBERS: 
 Harris Nakamoto 

 
 

 



 

2 
 

Changes to the rules, because of the commentary at the public hearings, include the 
reporting requirements of RUP (restricted use pesticide) which were initially not well received 
by the small business community.  The compromise made by DoAg was that the new 
reporting requirement only requires “one” form for businesses to complete which will function 
as both reporting and recordkeeping purposes, to be retained for two years.   
 
Another change was that the definition of “run-off” was expanded to more closely comply 
with the EPA definition.  Also, it was indicated that after Lobbyist Mr. Tim Lyons expressed 
concern about increasing the application period for approval of education credits from 14 
days prior to the scheduled class date to 30 days, DoAg opted to add a provision to the fee 
schedule allowing a fee of up to $100 to be charged to expedite approval of the provider 
offering continuing education classes; this fee can be waived if the approval process does 
not interfere with staff responsibilities.       

 
In addition, there was testimony expressing concern as to whether the proposed retailer 
pesticide warning sign requirements was feasible.  Despite these concerns, it was explained 
that due to a legislative directive, retail signage requirements have been required by law 
since 2007 and as a result, DoAg is unable to amend the rules; only the Hawaii legislature 
can change the retail signage requirements in statute.   
 
Mr. Lydgate noted that retailers will likely be surprised with the “labeling of pesticides” 
requirement.  Ms. Matsumura responded that the bigger retailers in Hawaii such as Long’s, 
Home Depot, etc., have been notified of the labeling requirements.     

 
Chair Cundiff stated that DoAg has done an excellent job at reaching out to the stakeholders 
to ensure businesses were involved in the process.  He asked if small businesses were 
concerned with the definition changes and the changes to the buffer zones.  Ms. Matsumura 
responded that private citizens and some of the schools were concerned with the buffer 
zones, and the farmers and schools questioned how they were to know where the buffer 
zones are located.   

 
Second Vice Chair Lydgate made a motion to move the proposed rules to the Governor for 
adoption.  Mr. Ritchie seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed.   

 
IV. NEW BUSINESS – Before Public Hearing 

 
A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to Part IV, Rules and 

Regulations Governing Commercial Boating Activities at County Beach Parks, 
Sections 30 to 36, promulgated by County of Kauai Department of Parks and 
Recreation 
 

Discussion leader and Second Vice Chair Lydgate stated that the proposed amendments 
pertain to changes at the Weke Boat Ramp, which is used by commercial boaters.  In the 
absence of a County of Kauai representative, Mr. Lydgate read the reasons for the rule 
amendments, “the Department proposes to amend its existing rules and regulations 
governing commercial boating activity at county beach parks by: 1) moderately extending the 
allowable hours of operation; 2) amending compliance and enforcement provisions to allow 
for incremental fines rather than automatic permit revocation; 3) minor non-substantive 



 

3 
 

changes in formatting and language; and 4) clarifying the scope of commercial activity that 
may be carried out at the County’s Weke Road Boat Ramp.”  

 
Second Vice Chair Lydgate noted that many of the changes are housekeeping in nature 
which will make it easier to enforce and give more leeway to commercial boat operators at 
the boat ramp.  However, an item not addressed was that commercial operators cannot use 
the hose that is in the county beach park.  Second Vice Chair Lydgate also noted that many 
of the operators were consulted by the County prior to the submission of the rules to this 
Board.  He further mentioned that it would be helpful if a County of Kauai representative 
communicate with this Board after the public hearing for a proper dialogue.   
 
Chair Cundiff added that it appears the changes to the rules are meant to assist small 
business and make it easier and less restrictive; Ms. Albitz concurred.  Mr. Shick commented 
that there may be some kick-back regarding the changes to the extended operating hours.  
 
Second Vice Chair Lydgate made a motion to move the proposed rules to public hearing.  
Ms. Atmospera-Walch seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed.   

 
B. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 11 Chapter 

148.1, Certification of Adult Foster Homes, promulgated by Department of 
Health (DOH) 

 
Discussion leader Ms. Atmospera-Walch stated that the rule changes impact those small 
businesses within Hawaii’s home and community-based care homes of which foster care 
homes are part of.  As the rules will clarify DOH’s practices and align with required policies 
all licensed providers will be affected by the rule changes.  
 
Ms. Tracey Comeaux, Brand Chief, and Ms. Sharon Adric, Compliance Section Supervisor 
at DOH’s Developmental Disabilities Division, explained the rules’ proposed changes as well 
as the history of the rules dating back to 1988.  The small businesses impacted by the 
changes are the adult foster homes, which provide care for individuals with developmental or 
intellectual disabilities.  Foster homes are private family homes that provide 24-hour care to 
not more than two adults, 18-years and older, and who are unrelated to the certified 
caregiver.   
 
A specific change to the rules is that it will require each adult foster home to obtain and 
maintain general liability and automobile liability insurance, which is required by statute.  The 
cost of the insurance may increase the cost of operating the adult foster home; however, the 
individual cost of the insurance coverage is unknown to DOH.  Automobile insurance is 
needed because caregivers are required, as part of their responsibilities, to transport 
individuals who reside in the homes to medical appointments as well as to community 
activities and events.  
 
If, however, an owner of an adult foster care home does not obtain the insurance coverage, 
DOH must receive an alternative transportation plan from the caregiver.  Chair Cundiff stated 
that DOH has had a long period of time to prepare for the implementation of the law and to 
work with the stakeholders.    
 



 

4 
 

Ms. Atmospera-Walch made a motion to move the proposed rules to public hearing.   
Mr. Ritchie seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed.   
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

 
A. Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in Accordance 

with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, HRS, on the following: 
 
1. Review of “Discussion Leader Assignments” for Board Members’ State and 

County Agencies’ Administrative Rule Review 
 

In preparation of discussing the board members’ discussion leader assignments, a 
matrix spreadsheet was created and distributed for review so there is a fair 
workload and representation of the various agencies.   
 
During the discussion, it was confirmed that board members from his/her own 
respective counties will be the discussion leader for that particular county as he/she 
will likely be more in-tune with the regulatory activity in that community.  The 
following assignments were determined:  

 
Lead Discussion Leaders 
Department of Public Safety - Johnathan Shick 
 
Back-up Discussion Leaders 
Department of Accounting & General Services – Mary Albitz 
Department of Agriculture – Kimo Lee  
Department of Budget & Finance – Garth Yamanaka 
Department of Defense – Mark Ritchie 
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands - Kimo Lee 
Department of Public Safety - William Lydgate 
Public Utilities Commission - Jonathan Shick 
 

Ms. Atmospera-Walch made a motion for the Board to accept the lead and back-up 
discussion leader assignments as discussed.  Ms. Albitz seconded the motion, and 
the Board members unanimously agreed. 

 
2. Meetings with Board Members and State Department Directors 

 
Chair Cundiff noted that meetings with the State department directors have been 
ongoing.  However, now that adjustments have been made to the discussion leader 
assignments as well as changes in State director assignments, he suggested that 
new letters from this Board are sent to the directors, introducing the new assigned 
discussion leaders, if applicable.   
 
Meetings with the directors should entail what this Board’s purview is and how each 
can help one another.  It was suggested that the letters include an introduction of 
the new website.  “Back-up” discussion leaders probably would not need to meet 
with the agencies unless they really want to.   



 

5 
 

Chair Cundiff reminded the members that back-up discussion leaders are only 
engaged if the lead discussion leaders are unable to attend the board meeting 
when the agency’s rule they are assigned to is being heard.  
 
Mr. Ritchie made a motion to incorporate the Board’s website into the new letters of 
introduction to the state directors.  Mr. Shick seconded the motion, and the Board 
members unanimously agreed. 
 

B. Discussion and Approval of Board’s Proposed New Website Prior to Anticipated 
Launch Date, August 15, 2019 
 
Chair Cundiff reminded the members that the test website link was sent out to them 
for review.  A lot of great work has been done on the new website as it tends to 
represent who the Board is and what the Board does.  Mr. Lydgate concurred and 
added that the website is a great improvement from the existing site and it is a 
better representation of the Board.    
 
Ms. Rosemary Warfield, Manager of eGovernment Services & Customer Services, 
at HIC (Hawaii Information Consortium) indicated that the site is 98% complete.  
While aesthetically the website is much more attractive, it is a living, breathing thing 
where changes can be made.  The next step is to approve the website to go live 
unless the members find that additional, major changes are needed.   
 
On July 30th DBEDT staff Mr. Ritchie, Ms. Palcovich, and Ms. Alcos will partake in 
website training.  Ms. Alcos will be the “lead” employee working on and updating 
the website on a regular basis.  It was noted that changes and updates, after the 
website is launched, can be made anytime.   
 
Mr. Ritchie stated that the “regulatory review card” section of the website has been 
revamped by taking a different approach; conversational language was 
incorporated into this section to explain why a small business would want to “submit 
a regulation for review.”  Overall, he believes the new website meets the “wish-list” 
of the changes the Board members wanted to have done.   
 
Going forward, additional major changes to the website, such as creating a mailing 
list to request a specific agency’s proposed rules, will require extra work and 
programming.  HIC’s Mr. Cosner noted that currently there are no per se means to 
make comments on the website but there are ways to contact DBEBT employees 
through the website.  In regard to the public requesting an agenda, Deputy Attorney 
General advised the Board to be careful because there are restrictions regarding 
requesting and receiving agendas.   
 
Second Vice Chair Lydgate made a motion to move the Board’s new website live 
onto the Internet.  Ms. Atmospera-Walch seconded the motion, and the Board 
members unanimously agreed.   
 



 

6 
 

VI. NEXT MEETING – The next meeting is scheduled for Thursday, August 15, 2019 in 
Conference Room 405, 235 South Beretania Street, Leiopapa A Kamehameha 
Building (State Office Tower), Honolulu, Hawaii at 10:00 a.m. 
 

VII. ADJOURNMENT – Ms. Albitz made a motion to adjourn the meeting and  
Ms. Atmospera-Walch seconded the motion; the meeting adjourned at 11:12 a.m.                



 
 
 

 
 
III.  Old Business – After Public Hearing 

A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments 
and the Small Business Statement After Public 
Hearing to HAR Title 8 Department of Liquor 
Control, Subtitle 1, Liquor Commission, 
promulgated by Department of Liquor Control, 
County of Maui, as follows: 

i. Chapter 101, Rules Governing the 
Manufacture and Sale of Intoxicating Liquor 
of the County of Maui; 

ii. Chapter 102, Rules Governing the 
Administrative Practices and Procedures of the 
Liquor Commission and Liquor Control 
Adjudication Board of the County of Maui  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SMALL BUSINESS STATEMENT 
“AFTER” PUBLIC HEARING TO THE 

SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD 
(Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), §201M-3) 

 
Department or Agency:  Department of Liquor Control, County of Maui   

Administrative Rule Title and Chapter: Chapter 101 and Chapter 102                                       

Chapter Name:  Rules Governing the Manufacture and Sale of Intoxicating Liquor of the County of 

Maui and Rules Governing Administrative Practices and Procedures of the Liquor Commission and 

Liquor Control Adjudication Board of the County of Maui  

Contact Person/Title:                    Glenn Mukai, Director    

Phone Number: (808) 243-7754        

E-mail Address: liquor@mauicounty.gov         Date:          July 16, 2019            

A. To assist the SBRRB in complying with the meeting notice requirement in 
HRS §92-7, please attach a statement of the topic of the proposed rules or 
a general description of the subjects involved. 

 
B. Are the draft rules available for viewing in person and on the Lieutenant 

Governor’s Website pursuant to HRS §92-7?   
Yes No 

 

(If “Yes,” please provide webpage address and when and where rules may be viewed in person. Please keep 
the proposed rules on this webpage until after the SBRRB meeting.) 
 

I. Rule Description:  New Repeal Amendment Compilation 
 

II. Will the proposed rule(s) affect small business? 
Yes No (If “No,” no need to submit this form.) 

 

* “Affect small business” is defined as “any potential or actual requirement imposed upon a small business . . . 
that will cause a direct and significant economic burden upon a small business, or is directly related to the 
formation, operation, or expansion of a small business.” HRS §201M-1 

 

* “Small business” is defined as a “for-profit corporation, limited liability company, partnership, limited 
partnership, sole proprietorship, or other legal entity that: (1) Is domiciled and authorized to do business in 
Hawaii; (2) Is independently owned and operated; and (3) Employs fewer than one hundred full-time or part- 
time employees in Hawaii." HRS §201M-1 
 

III. Is the proposed rule being adopted to implement a statute or ordinance that does 
not require the agency to interpret or describe the requirements of the statute or 
ordinance?  

Yes No 
(If “Yes” no need to submit this form. E.g., a federally-mandated regulation that does not afford the agency the 

discretion to consider less restrictive alternatives. HRS §201M-2(d)) 
 

IV. Is the proposed rule being adopted pursuant to emergency rulemaking? (HRS §201M-2(a))  
Yes No 

(If “Yes” no need to submit this form.) 



Small Business Statement after Public Hearing - Page 2 

Small Business Regulatory Review Board / DBEDT 
Phone: (808) 586‐2594 / Email: DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov 

This statement may be found on the SBRRB Website at: 
http://dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb-impact-statements- pre-and-post-public-hearing 

REVISED 09/05/2018 

* * * 
V. Please explain how the agency involved small business in the development of the

proposed rules.

a. Were there any recommendations incorporated into the proposed rules?
If yes, explain. If not, why not?

VI. If the proposed rule(s) affect small business, and are not exempt as noted
above, please provide the following information:

1. A description of how opinions or comments from affected small businesses
were solicited.

2. A summary of the public’s and small businesses’ comments.

3. A summary of the agency’s response to those comments.

4. The number of persons who:
(i) Attended the public hearing:

(ii) Testified at the hearing:

(iii) Submitted written comments:

5. Was a request made at the hearing to change the proposed rule in a way that
affected small business?

(i) If “Yes,” was the change adopted? Yes No 

(ii) If No, please explain the reason the change was not adopted and the
problems or negative result of the change.

The amendments were to be in compliance with State law and supported by small business. Definition for "standard drink" did not move
forward due to the possible negative impact to small business and may not be in the comlpiance with state law. 

Department's Small Business Review and Advisory Committee was part of the process.

Yes.  Proposed rules were proposed by the Small Business Review and Advisory Committee to 
delete antiquated rules, address changes within the liquor industry, update to conform with state
laws, etc.

Opinions or comments from affected small business were primarily solicited from the members of the 
SBRAC who represent the various licensees from different classes of licenses, notice of public hearing, etc.

Opposition - support standard drink definition, oppose restaurant licensee off-premises liquor sales and removal of drink limit per person
at one time. Small business oppose to standard drink definition, support restaurant license uniform hours for off premises sales, and
support the removal of drink limit per person to allow fights and to be compliance with state law.

Approximately 50+

24

22

Corporation Counsel response - Chapter 281, HRS, allows restaurant licensee to have off-premises liquor sales and allows the serving
of up to 32 ounces of beer to one person at one time.

mailto:sbrrb@dbedt.hawaii.gov
http://dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb-impact-statements-pre-and-post-public-hearing
http://dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb-impact-statements-pre-and-post-public-hearing
JetaimeA
Received



JetaimeA
Received





































 

 

 

 

 

IV.  Old Business – Before Public Hearing 
A.  Request by Mel Wills III, Holo Holo Charters, on 

behalf of the Hanalei Department of Land and 
Natural Resources Permitted Boaters for review of 
recommended revisions to the Proposed 
Amendments to Part IV, Rules and Regulations 
Governing Commercial Boating Activities at County 
Beach Parks, Sections 30 to 36, promulgated by 
County of Kauai Department of Parks and 
Recreation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1

Alcos, Jetaime

From: Mel Wills III <captmelwills@msn.com>
Sent: Friday, August 2, 2019 4:14 PM
To: DBEDT SBRRB
Subject: Pre Public Hearing Statement / Permitted Boaters Hanalei
Attachments: 20190802152153200.pdf

Aloha,  
 
Attached is the Pre Public Hearing Small Business Impact Statement from the Hanalei DLNR Permitted Boaters 
in conjunction with the documents you have already received from The County of Kauai Parks and Recreation.  
 
I would please ask you to incorporate a few small changes to the County of Kauai Department of Parks and 
Recreation new proposed rules for us. I represent the Permitted Boaters and am a member of the Ocean 
Tourism Coalition, Tim Lyons is on the mainland and will be also sending you a letter to address our changes. 
 
The current administration of Mayor Derek Kawakami is working very well with the five Permitted Boaters in 
Hanalei. We share a common goal to align the Rules and Regulations in Hanalei to reflect the best practices 
and make common sense changes to rules from the US Coast Guard, The DLNR, The County of Kauai and a 
future changes to the SMA permit. In the past there have been numerous inconsistency in all the agencies 
thereby making it next to impossible to be compliant on all fronts.  
 
I represent the interest  of all the Permittee's.  
 
Please contact me with any concern's . 
 
I will be attending your next meeting August 15th and am happy to answer all questions that may arise. 
 
Regards,  
 
MEL WILLS III  
Holo Holo Charters 
4353 Waialo Rd./ PO Box 50940 
Ele'ele , Kauai HI. 96705 
 
808 635 5795 
 
________________________________________ 
 



JetaimeA
Received





















Previously Reviewed at July 18, 2019 SBRRB Meeting

JetaimeA
Received

JetaimeA
Highlight











JetaimeA
Received











SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD

Department of Business, Economic Development & Tourism (DBEDT) Tel: 808 586-2419
No. 1 Capitol District Building, 250 S. Hotel Street, Fifth Floor, Honolulu, HI  96813
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2359, Honolulu, HI  96804 
Email: dbedt.SBRRB.info@hawaii.gov  
Website: dbedt.hawaii.gov/SBRRB   

 
               

David Y. Ige 
Governor 

 
Michael McCartney 

DBEDT Director 

Members 
 

Robert Cundiff 
Chairperson 

O ahu 
 

Garth Yamanaka 
Vice Chairperson 

 
 

William Lydgate 
2nd Vice Chairperson 

 
 

Harris Nakamoto 
O ahu 

 
Nancy Atmospera-Walch 

O ahu 
 

Mary Albitz 
Maui 

 
Jonathan Shick 

 
 

James Kimo Lee 
 

 
Director, DBEDT 
Voting Ex Officio 

 
MEMORANDUM  
 

 
TO: Patrick Porter, Director 
   
 
FROM:  Robert Cundiff, Chair    
  Small Business Regulatory Review Board  
   
DATE:  July 23, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Amendments to Part IV, Rules and Regulations Governing 

Commercial Boating Activities at County Beach Parks, Sections 30-36 
  
 
The Small Business Regulatory Review Board (SBRRB) provides recommendations 
to State and County agencies on proposed rules and proposed rule amendments 
pursuant to Chapter 201M, Hawaii Revised Statutes. 
 

 July 18, 2019 board meeting, the members 
reviewed the above-captioned proposed amendments to Part IV, Rules and 
Regulations Governing Commercial Boating Activities at County Beach Parks, 
before the public hearing.  
 
Upon review, the members unanimously agreed to pass the amendments onto 
public hearing.  Additionally, the members are interested in hearing back from the 
Department of Parks and Recreation as to what occurred during the public hearing.   
 
Thank you for keeping the SBRRB apprised of the regulatory activity at the County 

i , Department of Parks and Recreation.       
 
c:  Governor David Y. Ige 

William Lydgate, SBRRB Discussion Leader 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

V.  New Business – Before Public Hearing 
A.  Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments 
 to HAR Title 13 Chapter 234, Section 26, Fees and 
 Charges, promulgated by DLNR 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
 

 
  

 

   

 

  

  

  

  
     

   
 

  

  

 
    

 
  

  

                     
      

 

 
      

             

  
 

  
    

      

   

  
   

   

PRE-PUBLIC HEARING SMALL BUSINESS IMPACT STATEMENT 
TO THE 

SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD 
(Hawaii Revised Statutes §201M-2) 

Date: 

Department or Agency: 

Administrative Rule Title and Chapter: 

Chapter Name: 

Contact Person/Title: 

E-mail: Phone: 

A. To assist the SBRRB in complying with the meeting notice requirement in HRS §92-7, please attach
a statement of the topic of the proposed rules or a general description of the subjects involved.

B. Are the draft rules available for viewing in person and on the Lieutenant Governor’s Website
pursuant to HRS §92-7?

Yes No 

If “Yes,” provide details: 

I. Rule Description:
New Repeal Amendment Compilation 

II. Will the proposed rule(s) affect small business?
Yes No 

(If “No,” no need to submit this form.) 

* “Affect small business” is defined as “any potential or actual requirement imposed upon a small business . . . that will cause a
direct and significant economic burden upon a small business, or is directly related to the formation, operation, or expansion
of a small business.” HRS §201M-1

* “Small business” is defined as a “for-profit corporation, limited liability company, partnership, limited partnership, sole
proprietorship, or other legal entity that: (1) Is domiciled and authorized to do business in Hawaii; (2) Is independently owned
and operated; and (3) Employs fewer than one hundred full-time or part- time employees in Hawaii." HRS §201M-1

III. Is the proposed rule being adopted to implement a statute or ordinance that
does not require the agency to interpret or describe the requirements of the
statute or ordinance?

Yes No 
(If “Yes” no need to submit this form. E.g., a federally-mandated regulation that does not afford the 
agency thediscretion to consider less restrictive alternatives. HRS §201M-2(d)) 

IV. Is the proposed rule being adopted pursuant to emergency rulemaking? (HRS §201M-2(a))

Yes No 
(If “Yes” no need to submit this form.) 

* * * 

Revised 09/28/2018 

JetaimeA
Received



       

 
 

    
 

    
  

   

   

  

  

    

  

  
   

 

Pre-Public Hearing Small Business Impact Statement – Page 2 

If the proposed rule affects small business and are not exempt as noted above, 
please provide a reasonable determination of the following: 

1. Description of the small businesses that will be required to comply with the proposed rules 
and how they may be adversely affected. 

2. In dollar amounts, the increase in the level of direct costs such as fees or fines, and indirect 
costs such as reporting, recordkeeping, equipment, construction, labor, professional 
services, revenue loss, or other costs associated with compliance. 

If the proposed rule imposes a new or increased fee or fine: 

a. Amount of the current fee or fine and the last time it was increased. 

b. Amount of the proposed fee or fine and the percentage increase. 

c. Reason for the new or increased fee or fine. 

d. Criteria or methodology used to determine the amount of the fee or fine (i.e., 

Consumer Price Index, Inflation rate, etc.). 

3. The probable monetary costs and benefits to the agency or other agencies directly affected, 
including the estimated total amount the agency expects to collect from any additionally 
imposed fees and the manner in which the moneys will be used. 

Revised 09/28/2018 



       

  
 

  

 
  

   
  

 

 
 

 

Pre-Public Hearing Small Business Impact Statement – Page 3 

4. The methods the agency considered or used to reduce the impact on small business 
such as consolidation, simplification, differing compliance or reporting requirements, 
less stringent deadlines, modification of the fines schedule, performance rather than 
design standards, exemption, or other mitigating techniques. 

5. The availability and practicability of less restrictive alternatives that could be 
implemented in lieu of the proposed rules. 

6. Consideration of creative, innovative, or flexible methods of compliance for small 
businesses. The businesses that will be directly affected by, bear the costs of, or 
directly benefit from the proposed rules. 

7. How the agency involved small business in the development of the proposed rules. 

a. If there were any recommendations made by small business, were the 
recommendations incorporated into the proposed rule? If yes, explain. If no, 
why not. 

Revised 09/28/2018 



       

 

  

   
      

    

  
    

 
 

   
 

  
  

 

 

   
   

      

Pre-Public Hearing Small Business Impact Statement – Page 4 

8. Whether the proposed rules include provisions that are more stringent than those 
mandated by any comparable or related federal, state, or county standards, with an 
explanation of the reason for imposing the more stringent standard. 

If yes, please provide information comparing the costs and benefits of the proposed rules to 
the costs and benefits of the comparable federal, state, or county law, including the following: 

a. Description of the public purposes to be served by the proposed rule. 

b. The text of the related federal, state, or county law, including information about 
the purposes and applicability of the law. 

c. A comparison between the proposed rule and the related federal, state, or 
county law, including a comparison of their purposes, application, and 
administration. 

d. A comparison of the monetary costs and benefits of the proposed rule with the 
costs and benefits of imposing or deferring to the related federal, state, or 
county law, as well as a description of the manner in which any additional fees 
from the proposed rule will be used. 

e. A comparison of the adverse effects on small business imposed by the 
proposed rule with the adverse effects of the related federal, state, or county 
law. 

* * * 

Small Business Regulatory Review Board / DBEDT 
Phone: (808) 586-2594 / Email: DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov 

This Statement may be found on the SBRRB Website at: http://dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb/resources/small- business-impact-statements 

Revised 09/28/2018 

http://dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb/resources/small-business-impact-statements
mailto:DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov


Pre-Public Hearing Small Business Impact Statement Attachment 
Department of Land and Natural Resources, Division of Boating and Ocean Recreation 

Proposed amendments to Hawai‘i Administrative Rules Section 13-234-26 
 

2. The passenger fee amounts in HAR § 13-234-26 would increase as follows: 
• $0.30 per passenger embarking or disembarking for passenger vessels engaging 

only in interisland commerce increased to $3.00 per passenger embarking or 
disembarking per day for the Lahaina small boat harbor (increase of $2.70 
applied to Lahaina small boat harbor only, per passenger per day). 

• $1.00 per passenger embarking or disembarking for passenger vessels engaging 
in international or interstate commerce increased to $2.00 per passenger 
embarking or disembarking per day for small boat harbors other than Lahaina 
small boat harbor (increase of $1.00 for small boat harbors other than Lahaina 
small boat harbor, per passenger per day). 

 
2a. The current fees in HAR § 13-234-26 are: 

• $0.30 per passenger embarking or disembarking for passenger vessels engaging 
only in interisland commerce. 

• $1.00 per passenger embarking or disembarking for passenger vessels engaging 
in international or interstate commerce. 

The fees in Section 13-234-26 have not been increased since the section was 
adopted in February 1994. 

 
2b. Proposed fee increases and percentages of increases in Section 13-234-26 are: 

• $0.30 to $3.00 per passenger per day for the Lahaina small boat harbor only 
(900% increase). 

• $1.00 to $2.00 per passenger per day for small boat harbors other than Lahaina 
small boat harbor (100% increase). 

 
2c. Increased fees are intended to align DOBOR fees for small boat harbors and other 

boating facilities with current market rates.  DOBOR has not raised its fee in several 
years and therefore is not maximizing the revenue-generating potential of its small 
boat harbors and facilities. 

 
7a. DOBOR worked with cruise ship company representatives to attempt to develop a 

stepped or delayed fee increase.  However, DOBOR could not reach any stepped or 
delayed increases because any such increases would have resulted in a loss in 
revenue. 



DEPARTMENT OF LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

 

Amendments to section 13-234-26 

Hawaii Administrative Rules 

 

[Date of adoption by agency] 

 

1. Section 13-234-26, Hawaii Administrative 

Rules, is amended to read as follows: 

 

§13-234-26  Passenger fees.  (a)  Any passenger 

or cruise vessel [which is] used for private gain 

[and] that does not have a valid mooring permit or 

commercial permit and [which] uses state small boat 

harbors, property, or facilities [shall pay the 

following fees in addition to any other fees required 

by this chapter: 

(1) Per passenger (includes in transit)-- 

embarking to or from shore to 

ship......................................$2 

(2) Passengers in transit on a vessel on a 

continuous trip whose point of origin and 

termination is a state small boat harbor, a 

total of disembarking and embarking at each 

port per passenger.....................$1.50 

(3) Passengers] for embarking and disembarking 

passengers [on occasional and infrequent 

use] on a special charter [when] approved in 

[advance of voyage as provided in] 

accordance with section 13-231-

57(c)(3)[.............................$1.50] 

shall pay $2.00 per passenger. 

 (b) [Any passenger vessel using a dock, pier or 

wharf in a state small boat harbor for disembarking 

and embarking passengers by means of any boat or 

lighter while moored offshore, shall pay a fee per 

passenger for disembarking and embarking at each small 

boat harbor as follows: 

(1) Passenger vessels engaging only in 

interisland commerce:..................$ .30 

(2) Passenger vessels engaging in international 

or inter-state commerce:...............$1.00 

JetaimeA
Received



Vessels operated by a federal or state agency are 

exempt from the provisions of this subsection.] Any 

passenger or cruise vessel which uses a dock, pier, or 

wharf in a state small boat harbor for private gain by 

means of any boat or tender while moored offshore 

shall pay a fee per passenger as follows: 

(1) For Lahaina small boat harbor..$3.00 per day 

(2) For all other small boat harbors or 

facilities.....................$2.00 per day 

(c) Passenger counts shall be determined by a 

vessel's passenger list.  A passenger or cruise vessel 

required by this section to pay passenger fees shall 

file [A] a report [shall be filed] with the department 

on a form acceptable to the department within thirty 

[days after the date of embarking or disembarking of 

passengers over state facilities] calendar days after 

the vessel departs a state small boat harbor or state 

boating facility, and [the] any charges due shall be 

remitted along with the report. 

(d) Fees required by this section shall be in 

addition to any other fees required by this chapter. 

(e) Vessels operated by a federal, state, or 

county agency in an official capacity shall be exempt 

from the provisions of this section.  [Eff 2/24/94; am 

   ] (Auth: HRS §§200-4, 200-6, 200-10, 

200-22, 200-24) (Imp: HRS §§200-4, 200-6, 200-10, 200-

22, 200-24) 

  



2. Material, except source notes, to be 

repealed is bracketed and stricken.  New material is 

underscored. 

 

3. The amendments to section 13-234-26, Hawaii 

Administrative Rules, shall take effect ten days after 

filing with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor. 

 

I certify that the foregoing are copies of the 

rules, drafted in the Ramseyer format pursuant to the 

requirements of section 91-4.1, Hawaii Revised 

Statutes, which were adopted on   by the 

Board of Land and Natural Resources, and filed with 

the Office of the Lieutenant Governor. 

 

 

 

         

SUZANNE D. CASE 

Chairperson 

Board of Land and Natural Resources 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: 

 

 

____________________________  

Deputy Attorney General 



 
 
 
 
 
VI.  Regulation for Review 

A.  Discussion and Action on Response from DLNR 
from the May 16, 2019 Board Meeting on 
Whether Bottomfish Restricted Fishing Areas 
Should be Opened and/or Disestablished under 
HAR Title 13 Chapter 94, Bottomfish 
Management 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



JetaimeA
Received





SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD

Department of Business, Economic Development & Tourism (DBEDT) Tel: 808 586-2419
No. 1 Capitol District Building, 250 S. Hotel Street, Fifth Floor, Honolulu, HI  96813                  
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2359, Honolulu, HI  96804 
Email: dbedt.SBRRB.info@hawaii.gov  
Website: dbedt.hawaii.gov/SBRRB   

 
               

David Y. Ige 
Governor 

 
Michael McCartney 

DBEDT Director 
 

Members
 

Anthony Borge 
Chairperson 

O‘ahu 
 

Robert Cundiff 
Vice Chairperson 

O‘ahu 
 

Garth Yamanaka 
2nd Vice Chairperson 

Hawai‘i 
 

Harris Nakamoto 
O‘ahu 

 
Dr. Nancy Atmospera-

Walch 
O‘ahu 

 
Mary Albitz 

Maui 
 

William Lydgate 
Kaua‘i 

 
Jonathan Shick 

O’ahu 
 

James Kimo Lee 
Hawai’i 

 
Director, DBEDT 
Voting Ex Officio 

 

MEMORANDUM  

TO: Suzanne Case, Chairperson 
   Board of Land and Natural Resources (BLNR) 
 
FROM:  Anthony Borge, Chair    
  Small Business Regulatory Review Board (SBRRB)
   
DATE:  May 30, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR) Title 13 Section 94(8)(d), 

“Bottomfish restricted fishing areas 

On behalf of the SBRRB, we bring to your attention a concern regarding small business 
and the above-captioned HAR, in accordance with Section 201M-5(a), Hawaii Revised 
Statutes, which states, in part: 
 
 The board may consider any request from small business owners for review of 
 any rule adopted by a state agency and to make recommendations to the agency 
 or the legislature regarding the need for a rule change or  legislation. 

The small business concern that was recently presented to the SBRRB was whether all 
bottomfish restricted fishing areas should be opened and/or disestablished.   
 
Therefore, under the SBRRB’s authority, it is respectfully suggested that a periodic 
review be performed on HAR Section 13-94(8)(d), Bottomfish restricted fishing areas, 
and on the conservation areas listed under Exhibit A: Bottomfish Restricted Areas 
(BRFAs) 4-8-2010, to determine how, if at all, the restrictions may be less burdensome 
on small business.    
 
Should you have any questions on this matter, please feel free to contact me at  
487-9041.    
 
Thank you for your consideration.   
 
c:  Governor David Y. Ige 

Mary Albitz, SBRRB Discussion Leader 
 



4 

Testifier Mr. Roy Morioka, questioned whether small boat fishermen (i.e., “week-end 
warriors”) who do not fish for a living but have a commercial license are considered 
“commercial.”  In response, Ms. Statts stated that the fees for the ramp are for only those 
people that have specific ramp permits, not for those who just use the ramp. 

Ms. Albitz made a motion to send the proposed rules to the Governor for adoption. 
Mr. Ritchie seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed. 

2. Part III Ocean Waters, Navigable Streams and Beaches – Chapter 253
Catamaran Registration Certificate, Other Registration, and Commercial Use
Permit Fees

Ms. Statts explained that the proposed amendments reflect raising the commercial use fee 
from $200 to $300 as well for housekeeping measures; Mr. Tashima added that the 
housekeeping measures include consolidating various definitions. 

Ms. Albitz made a motion to send the proposed rules to the Governor for adoption. 
Mr. Ritchie seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed. 

B. Discussion and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public Hearing and
Proposed New Rules and Regulations for Kauai County Code, Section 18-5.3,
Revocable Permits to Vend Within County Right of Ways, promulgated by
Department of Parks and Recreation / County of Kauai

Chair Borge stated that the rules have been approved by the Kauai County Council and are 
in front of this Board for formality purposes.  Discussion leader Mr. Lydgate summarized 
what had transpired since this Board reviewed the proposal prior to public hearing and noted 
that the Department of Parks and Recreation performed due diligence and did a good job 
with the outreach of the rules.  

Mr. Nakamoto made a motion to accept the rules as presented.  Mr. Lydgate seconded the 
motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed.  

V. REGULATION REVIEW CARD

A. Discussion, Fact Finding and Action on Request Received through this Board’s
“Regulation Review Card” for Discussing Whether or Not All Bottomfish
Restricted Fishing Areas Should be Opened and/or Disestablished under HAR
Title 13 Chapter 94 Bottomfish Management, promulgated by DLNR

Mr. Alton Miyasaka, who submitted the regulatory review card, is a retired DLNR employee 
and familiar with the rule-making process.  He requested that this Board support a petition 
for the Board of Land and Natural Resources (BLNR) to place on its agenda the 
“disestablishing all bottomfish restricted areas” under HAR Chapter 13-94, Bottomfish 
Management.   

- SBRRB Meeting - May 16, 2019

JetaimeA
Highlight

JetaimeA
Highlight



5 

Mr. Miyasaka’s request also included a modification to HAR Section 13-94(8)(d) to require 
DLNR to go to public hearing to change the maps of the Bottomfish Restricted Fishing Areas 
(BRFAs).  This is due to the negative impact on small businesses who are the “permitted” 
commercial fishers as the current process does require DLNR to go to public hearing when 
there is a change in the maps.     

Mr. Miyasaka explained that instead of opening only 4 BRFAs, which is what DLNR has 
recently allowed, he is requesting that all 12 of the BRFAs are opened.  By disestablishing 
the bottomfish restricted areas and opening up all BRFAs, it would allow for: 1) other fishery 
regulations to remain in effect; 2) no change of the stock assessment; 3) the continual 
monitoring of an annual catch; 4) the foreclosure of the fishery if the catch limit is reached; 5) 
overage of catch to be subtracted from the following year limit; and 6) BRFA’s to be 
immediately reestablished if necessary. 

The following summarizes the timeframe of Mr. Miyasaka’s request to DLNR/BLNR: 1) BLNR 
met on January 11, 2019 and approved removing 4 of the 12 existing BRFA; 2) BLNR was 
purportedly prevented from discussing possible removal of all BRFA; and 3) BLNR 
chairperson purportedly intercepted Mr. Miyasaka’s petition to BLNR to have a discussion to 
remove all BRFA.  Prior to coming before this Board, the State’s Ombudsman’s Office was 
approached where Mr. Miyasaka was advised to contact DLNR’s director for clarification as 
to why his request was rejected; the chairperson was unable to meet with him for 
clarification. 

Testifier Mr. Roy Morioka, Board Member and Chair of Commercial, Traditional and 
Bottomfishing Fishing, concurred with Mr. Miyasaka’s concerns and stated that nearly half of 
the commercial fishers in Oahu are impacted.  He believed there is no need for additional 
closures of BRFAs and requested that this Board support the opening and disestablishing of 
all BRFAs for the following reasons: 1) there is already an established science-based 
management; 2) there are various socio-economic impacts; and 3) there are safety-at-sea 
reasons.   

Deputy Attorney General Polk-Waihee explained that Mr. Miyasaka’s request was not 
specifically identified under this Board’s Petition statute, Section 201M-6, HRS, so it cannot 
be treated as such.  Therefore, the request before this Board comes under the Board’s 
general powers for review of existing administrative rules, Section 201M-5, HRS, for a rule 
change or legislation.    

Ms. Albitz made a motion to go into executive session at 11:48 a.m.; Mr. Ritchie seconded 
the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed.  The motion was passed under 
Section 92-5(a)(4), to consult with the Board’s attorney concerning the Board’s powers, 
duties, immunities, privileges and liabilities as it relates to discussing HAR Chapter 13-94, 
Bottomfish Management.  The executive session ended at 12:01 p.m. 

Testifier Mr. Ed Watamura, Council member of WPRFMC (Western Pacific Regional Fishery 
Management Council) stated that WPRFMC’s executive director has written letters to 
DLNR’s Director requesting that all the BRFA’s be open and disestablished on behalf of the 
federal government.     



6 

Vice Chair Cundiff explained that in reading the administrative rules, it gives DLNR/BLNR the 
ability to interpret and create restrictions in the law, and while there are restrictions to this 
Board’s purview, the members may send a letter to DLNR suggesting that it consider doing a 
periodic review of the rules.  Mr. Lydgate added that this Board has no authority to ask 
DLNR to critique or implement these rules differently. 

The suggested periodic review would be specifically for Section 13-94(8)(d), Bottomfish 
restricted fishing areas, and for “Exhibit A: Bottomfish Restricted Fishing Areas (BRFAs) 4-8-
2010.”  DLNR may also be approached by addressing the rule itself and how it could be 
modified to be less burdensome on small business.  However, even though from this Board’s 
perspective the rules lack a periodic review, DLNR cannot be forced to bring the rules to 
BLNR or for public review.  It was added that there is nothing in the rules stating that DLNR 
review or remove the restriction and it was recommended that the testifiers continue their 
plight with the Ombudsman’s Office.  

Vice Chair Cundiff made a motion for this Board to send a letter to DLNR/BLNR suggesting 
that a periodic review be performed for HAR Section 13-94(8)(d), Bottomfish restricted 
fishing areas and for the conservation areas under “Exhibit A: Bottomfish Restricted Fishing 
Areas (BRFAs) 4-8-2010” to determine how the restrictions may be less burdensome on 
small business.  Mr. Nakamoto seconded the motion, and the Board unanimously agreed. 

VI. LEGISLATIVE MATTERS

A. Update on Senate Bill 1348 SD1 HD1 CD1, Relating to the Small Business
Regulatory Review Board

Chair Borge reminded the members that this bill removed “ordinances” from the statute and 
made a few other minor changes.  The bill, however, did not include operating funds for the 
Board; the funds are to cover neighbor island travel expenses as well as the website 
development and maintenance. 

It was announced that the legislative request from DAGS’ State Procurement Office for funds 
allocated for the creation of the State’s “Small Business Office” was not approved during the 
legislative session and as a result this project has been put on hold.   

VII. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

A. Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in accordance
with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, HRS

a. Meetings with Board Members and State Department Directors

Mr. Nakamoto met with the Department of Human Services Director Pankaj
Bahanot; the meeting went very well.

Chair Borge encouraged the members to contact the directors for a “meet and
greet” to let the agencies know what the Board is about.



Board of Land and Natural Resources 

Pursuant to Sections 13-1-10 and 13-1-27, Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR), and Section 91-

8, Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), I am filing this petition to respectfully ask the Board to 

consider opening all bottomfish restricted fishing areas. Subsection 13-1-27(b), HAR, further 

requires the petition to contain the following: 

(1) The name, address, and telephone number of the petitioner;  

a. Alton Miyasaka 

b. Address  

c. Phone  

(2) A statement of the nature of the petitioner’s interest, including reasons for 

submission of the petition;  

a. I am the retired Acting Commercial Fisheries Program Manager, Division of Aquatic 

Resources, Department of Land and Natural Resources and have detailed information 

relating to the Hawaii bottomfish fishery from both the state and federal perspectives 

b. During the Board of Land and Natural Resources meeting of January 11, 2019, the 

Board discussed item F-1, REQUEST TO OPEN THE FOLLOWING EXISTING 

MAIN HAWAIIAN ISLANDS BOTTOMFISH RESTRICTED FISHING AREAS 

(BRFA): BRFA C (POIPU, KAUAI, BRFA F (PENGUIN BANKS), BRFA J 

(HANA, MAUI) AND BRFA L (LELEIWI, HAWAII ISLAND), AND REQUEST 

TO DELEGATE TO THE CHAIRPERSON THE AUTHORITY TO IMPLEMENT 

THE DECISION. 

c. The Board decision was to approve staff recommendation and to report back to the 

Board in 3 years 

d. The Board was prevented from discussing the option of opening all BRFA due to the 

restrictive nature of the title of F-1 before it, despite obvious interest of some Board 

members to have this broader discussion 

e. I want to provide the Board with the opportunity to discuss whether or not all BRFA 

should be opened and to provide my comments on some of the Board’s questions and 

comments 

(3) A designation of the specific provision, rule, or order in question;  

a. Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR), Section 13-94-8, Bottomfish restricted fishing 

areas 

(4) A clear and concise statement of the position or contention of the petitioner;  

a. It is my contention that given the opportunity and the facts in this matter, the Board 

would support the opening of all BRFA. 

(5) A memorandum of authorities, containing a full discussion of the reasons, including 

legal authorities, in support of such position or contention;  

a. As the BLNR has already held a meeting on the issue of BRFA, I believe the legal 

authorities to make this decision and to implement this decision has already been 

established. The authorities to open four BRFA would be the same for opening all 

BRFA. See below for a discussion of my reasons for this petition. 

(6) The signature of each petitioner. 

 

JetaimeA
Received



The Board is requested to place on its agenda an item to discuss the opening of all bottomfish 

restricted fishing areas (BRFA). Should the Board support opening all BRFA, the Board is 

further requested to direct the Department to immediately implement such actions as necessary. 

The Board, at its meeting of January 11, 2019, discussed the option of approving the opening of 

four of the twelve bottomfish restricted fishing areas (BRFA). The title of Item F-1, provided the 

Board with the option of approving, or not, the opening of four BRFA. It did not allow the option 

of opening any other BRFA or all BRFA. Also, in the course of that discussion, certain 

information were not fully provided for the Board’s consideration. The result was a Board 

decision that the Division of Aquatic Resources report back to the Board in three years, 

supposedly at the next bottomfish stock assessment update. The Board appears to have 

misunderstood what the assessment update would include and what results would be reported to 

the Board at that time. Part of the reason for this petition is to clarify for the Board the fact that 

the assessment update would have nothing to do with the Board’s decision to open four BRFA. 

 

BLNR comments/questions during BLNR meeting of January 11, 2019 

 Concerned about the 42% risk of overfishing 

 What more information is needed? 

 Waiting for next update 

 What happens to the SAR in 3 years? 

 What happens to the SAR in 5 years? 

 Trying to be conservative 

 Hilo boat ramp problems due to Pohoiki ramp closure 

What is the Stock Assessment (SA) 

 The SA has several parts: the data (evaluates whether the data are good enough for 

management use), the model (the “engine” of the assessment that calculates the stock 

status, model checking (tests if the model is operating as expected), future catch 

projections (predicts the overfishing limit for each of the years through 2022), and 

estimates risk for exceeding the overfishing limit to guide decision makers on possible 

ACL determinations 

 SA essentially provides information on how much fish can be sustainably taken each year 

 Data sources: biological, fishery –dependent, fishery-independent 

o Biological data includes growth curves, life span, age at maturity, mortality rates, 

productivity estimates, and fecundity 

o Fishery-dependent data includes annual catch information as reported by 

commercial fishers from 1949 to 2016 (4.8 million records over 68 years) 

o Unreported catch estimated slightly larger than reported commercial catch 

o Fishery-independent data includes visual surveys by remote camera and research 

fishing using stratified random sampling to verify visual survey data 

 Assessment model 

o Bayesian state-space production model 



 Comparison with single species modeling 

 Results include: stock status, catch projections, model checks to determine if the model is 

operating as expected (retrospective analysis and sensitivity analysis) 

What the SA represents 

 The 2018 SA represents the most complete and exhaustive review of the Hawaii 

bottomfish fishery to date and is the best scientific information available 

 The PIFSC is a federal agency that provides unbiased scientific information to policy and 

decision makers; it has no decision making authority on how the information is used 

 The SA has undergone independent expert review and found to be credible 

 The SA is supported by the bottomfish fishers, the Council, and the NMFS and will be 

used by the Council and NMFS to inform their management of this fishery into the future 

 The Board should also accept the SA as the primary tool to jointly manage this fishery; 

working from the same information should result in the same conclusions that will 

support complementary management decisions 

High Overfishing Risk 

 Maximum allowed under federal law is 50% 

 Council has chosen to use a more conservative risk estimate of 40% (the lower the 

number, the more conservative) 

 This 40% risk estimate is the probability of exceeding the overfishing limit during any 

year 

 This risk estimate takes into account and includes scientific and management 

uncertainties 

 The overfishing limit is the point at which the catch begins to negatively impact the 

sustainability of the stock; the higher the overfishing (in pounds), the sooner the stock 

reaches an overfished condition 

 The overfishing limit is a “yellow light” warning that you need to slow down fishing 

while the overfished condition is the “red light” to stop fishing 

 The annual catch limit (ACL) is set at the 40% risk of the overfishing limit because the 

goal is to maximize the catch while minimizing the risk of fishing too much. The ACL is 

the maximum catch limit set for any fishing year but the actual catch has not exceeded 

the ACL in the last 5 years 

 In 2018, the catch was 284,000 pounds; this catch posed a 15% risk of overfishing based 

on the new ACL of 490,000 pounds (see Table 15, page 72, Stock Assessment report) 

 Should an ACL be exceeded in any year, the ACL for the following year will be reduced 

by the overage 

 The risk seems high because the goal is to maximize the catch but this risk is lower than 

it appears due to the conservative nature of the SA; the management agencies desire to 

balance the catch against the risk; in reality, the actual annual catch has been low risk, 

much lower than the 40% risk of overfishing would indicate 



 The total pounds in the stock is estimated at more than 15,000,000 pounds; the ACL at 

500,000 pounds is less than 3% of the stock biomass; current scientific thinking is that 

less than 20% take of the stock is sustainable 

Board Wants to be Conservative 

 The SA is a conservative assessment of the bottomfish stock status 

 It takes into account the uncertainties of the commercial catch reports, the unreported 

commercial catch, the unreported non-commercial catch, and the estimates in the 

assessment model; it’s conservative because of these uncertainties 

 The SA includes tests (retrospective, sensitivity, and independent reviews) that evaluate 

the validity of its calculations 

 The Council and NMFS set additional conservative reference points and procedures 

(ACL, overfishing limits, risk, accountability measures) 

 The Board can have confidence that the SA is accurate and represents the best scientific 

information available on this fishery 

 There would be no measurable difference between opening four instead of all BRFA  

 The SA essentially treats the BRFA as if they don’t exist and are already open  

Future Stock Assessment Review Clarification 

 NMFS normally schedules periodic updates of its assessments; for example, at 3 years 

the SA is updated (in 2021) with 3 years of new annual catch data (2018-2020) that will 

likely inform the future catch projections for the next 5 years (2018-2022) but not change 

the SA model 

 At 5 years after a benchmark, the SA is reviewed to see if any new model information 

exists that would change the model; if there is no new information, the model remains 

unchanged 

 Every year, the catch is monitored to ensure that the ACL is not exceeded; annual 

monitoring of the catch will not change the SA 

 Opening up BRFA will not change the SA; the BRFA do not exist to the SA  

 The Board opened four BRFA and wanted a report back after 3 years; it possibly assumes 

that there will be an update of the SA at 3 years to monitor the opened BRFA impacts on 

the stock status; the SA will not be monitoring the BRFA openings 

 There is no causal relationship between BRFA and the catch; should the catch increase 

after the BRFA openings, it should not be assumed the BRFAs caused the increase; many 

factors can affect catch and the extent that BRFA may contribute to a change in catch is 

unknown 

 In my opinion, the 3-year update will not be of much interest to the Board; it is unclear 

what the Board expects the SA will say in 3 years 



 Since the annual catch will be monitored relative to the ACL, a report back to the Board 

after the end of each fishing year (October/November) would be more helpful than 

waiting three years for an SA update 

Drazen report of BRFA effectiveness 

 The Division of Aquatic Resources contracted Dr. Chris Kelley, University of Hawaii at 

Manoa, Oceanography Department to, among other things, identify bottom habitat types 

that may be important to bottomfish; Dr. Jeff Drazen continued that work on bottom 

habitat mapping after Dr. Kelley left the project. 

 Drs. Kelley and Drazen are physical oceanographers, chosen primarily for their expertise 

in habitat mapping; the 2007 revised locations of the BRFA would be based on this 

mapping data; the bottom camera (botcam) technology was to verify the presence of 

bottomfish in areas that were identified as potentially important to bottomfish 

 While the mapping project provided detailed information on habitat statewide, the 

botcam studies were limited to four of the twelve BRFA due to limited funding 

 Dr. Drazen’s studies provided inconclusive results in that some BRFA saw increases in 

some bottomfish densities while other BRFA did not; it is still unclear why these 

differences occurred 

 

Hilo boat ramp congestion 

 This is an access issue and not a resource issue 

 It appears that the Hilo fishers are experiencing crowded conditions due to the Pohoiki 

boat ramp closure 

 The concerns are that should the Leleiwi BRFA be opened, there will be a rush to the 

Hilo ramp to fish the BRFA and add to an already crowded situation 

 Opening all BRFA might reduce the rush to the Hilo ramp as the Hamakua BRFA K 

would be open and the Kona fishers would launch from the Mahukona ramp (on the West 

side) instead 

What more information is needed? 

 While perfect data are desirable, such data are rarely, if ever, available 

 However, decisions need to be made using the best information available at the time  

 The SA represents the best information at this point in time and it indicates the fishery is 

sustainable, even if the annual catch were much larger than it currently is 

 If the Board wants to make a decision on opening the BRFA, all the information it needs 

is already available now 

 Provided the ACL is not exceeded, how many BRFA are opened or closed is irrelevant to 

the SA 



 The main question seems to be - Will the BRFA openings jeopardize the stock 

sustainability? Answer – No, provided the annual catch does not exceed the ACL, 

(regardless of how many BRFA are opened) 

 What is the likelihood of exceeding the ACL if all BRFA are opened? Because the BRFA 

are not included in the SA, it doesn’t matter if none or all of the BRFA are opened. The 

important trigger is the annual catch, not how many BRFA are opened. 

 Factors limiting an extraordinary increase in annual catch; the last time the fishery had 

catch in excess of 500,000 pounds was over 20 years ago; the professional bottom fishers 

are gone from the fishery; the Northwestern Hawaiian islands bottomfish fishery is closed 

due to the Papahanaumokuakea Marine National Monument; the demand for bottomfish 

is seasonally limited and not expected to change in the foreseeable future; the number of 

participants in the fishery is declining over time; the fisher expertise to increase the catch 

is declining 

 The fishery is currently operating under a “green” light; should the ACL be exceeded, the 

light might change to “yellow”; there would still be time to slow down 



 
 
 

94-1 

UNCERTIFIED COPY 
 
 
 
 

HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 
 

TITLE 13 
 

DEPARTMENT OF LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES 
 

SUBTITLE 4  FISHERIES 
 

PART V PROTECTED MARINE FISHERIES RESOURCES 
 

CHAPTER 94 
 

BOTTOMFISH MANAGEMENT 
 
 
§13-94-1 Purpose 
§13-94-2 Definitions 
§13-94-3 Penalty 
§13-94-4 Severability 
§13-94-5 Bottomfish species 
§13-94-6 Restricted bottomfish fishing gears 
§13-94-7 Recreational bag limits 
§13-94-8 Bottomfish restricted fishing areas 

  §13-94-9 Bottomfish fishing vessel identification 
     number 

§13-94-10 Control date 
§13-94-11 Bottomfish fishing seasons, other    
  restrictions 
§§13-94-12 to 13-94-13  (Reserved) 
§13-94-14 Exceptions 
 
 

§13-94-1  Purpose.  It is the intention of the 
department to establish these rules for the 
conservation and management of bottomfish resources in 
the main Hawaiian Islands.  Scientific studies 
indicate that certain bottomfish species should be 
managed and certain areas strictly regulated to 
conserve existing stocks. 

 
§13-94-2  Definitions.  As used only in this 

chapter: 
 

JetaimeA
Received



 
 
 

94-2 

§13-94-2 
 
 
 
 
 "Board" means the board of land and natural 
resources. 
 "Bottomfish" means those fish species listed in 
section 13-94-5 of this chapter. 
 "Bottomfish limited entry program" means a method 
of fishery management that limits or controls 
participation in a fishery, access to a fishery, or 
generally fishing, for a bottomfish species or a 
number of bottomfish species.  Measures to limit or 
control participation, access, or fishing could 
include, but are not limited to, reducing or setting 
a maximum number of fishers, reducing or setting a 
maximum number of fishing vessels, restricting fishing 
gear types, restricting fishing areas, or restricting 
maximum amount of catch. 
 "Bottomfish longline" means a type of fishing 
gear or fishing method used to take bottomfish 
consisting of a weighted mainline, with attached 
shorter branchlines with fishing hook or hooks, that 
is either laid on the ocean bottom or suspended 
horizontally near the ocean bottom with floats. 
 "Clearly visible" means to be able to be seen in 
its entirety from a distance at least 100 feet away, 
free of any obstacle that may block the field of view 
from at least 45 degrees above, fore, and aft of the 
vessel. 
 "Commercial purposes" means the taking of marine 
life for profit or gain or as a means of livelihood 
where the marine life is taken in or outside of the 
State, or where the marine life is sold, offered for 
sale, bartered, landed, or transported for sale 
anywhere in the State. 
 "Kona crab net" means a type of fishing gear 
consisting of a metal frame over which is stretched 
netting material, and that is deployed on the bottom 
with the kona crab, as defined in section 13-95-1, 
being captured by entanglement on the netting 
material. 
 "Main Hawaiian islands commercial bottomfish 
fishery" means the fishing of bottomfish for 
commercial purpose in the waters of the main Hawaiian 
islands surrounding, between, and including the 
islands of Niihau and Kaula to the northwest and the 
island of Hawaii to the southeast. 



 
 
 

94-3 

§13-94-4 
 
 
 
 
 "Net" means any of various fishing devices of 
mesh material made into various shapes, such as but 
not limited to, a bag, sack, pouch, or curtain, used 
to entangle, surround, or concentrate aquatic life. 
 "Non-commercial purposes" means any purpose other 
than commercial purposes. 
 "Scoop net" means a type of fishing net 
consisting of a bag of mesh material kept open with a 
rigid frame and manipulated by a rigid handle that is 
designed to be used by a single person unaided by any 
mechanical device. 
 "Take" means to fish for, catch, or harvest, or 
to attempt to fish for, catch, or harvest, aquatic 
life.  The use of any gear, equipment, tool, or any 
means to fish for, catch, capture, or harvest, or to 
attempt to fish for, catch, capture, or harvest, 
aquatic life by any person who is in the water, or in 
a vessel on the water, or on or about the shore where 
aquatic life can be fished for, caught, or harvested, 
shall be construed as fishing. 
 "Trap" means any of various fishing devices of 
mesh, perforated, or solid material made into the 
shape of a box, container, or enclosure, with one or 
more openings that allow aquatic life to enter into 
the interior of the box, container, or enclosure, but 
restrict exit out, thereby capturing the aquatic life 
within. 
 "Trawl" means a type of fishing net, usually in 
the form of an elongated bag, with the mouth kept open 
by various means that captures aquatic life while 
being towed or dragged through the water by a vessel. 
[Eff  6/1/1998; am 10/18/2010]  (Auth:  HRS §187A-5)  
(Imp:  HRS §187A-5) 
 

§13-94-3  Penalty.  A person violating this 
chapter, or the terms and conditions of any license or 
permit issued as provided by this chapter, shall be 
punished as provided by law.  [Eff   6/1/1998] (Auth:  
HRS §§187A-5, 187A-13, 188-53, 188-70, 189-4)  (Imp:  
HRS §§187A-5, 187A-13, 188-53, 188-70, 189-4) 
 

§13-94-4  Severability.  If any provision of this 
chapter, or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity does not  



 
 
 

94-4 

§13-94-4 
 
 
 
 
affect other provisions or applications of the chapter 
which can be given effect without the invalid 
provision or application, and to this end the  
provisions of this chapter are severable.  [Eff  
6/1/1998]  (Auth:  HRS §§187A-5, 1-23)  (Imp:  HRS 
§§187A-5, 1-23) 

 
§13-94-5  Bottomfish species.  For the purposes 

of this chapter, the following species are bottomfish: 
 (1) `Ula`ula koa`e, ruby or longtail snapper, or 
  onaga (Etelis coruscans); 

(2)  `Ula`ula or ehu (Etelis carbunculus); 
(3)  Kalekale (Pristipomoides sieboldii); 
(4) `Opakapaka (Pristipomoides filamentosus); 
(5) `Ukikiki or gindai (Pristipomoides zonatus); 

 (6) Hapu`u, hapu`upu`u, or Hawaiian grouper   
  (Epinephelus quernus); and  

(7) Lehi or rusty jobfish (Aphareus rutilans).   
 [Eff:  6/1/1998; am 10/18/2010]  (Auth:  
 HRS §187A-5)  (Imp:  HRS §187A-5) 

 
§13-94-6  Restricted bottomfish fishing gears.  

(a)  Certain fishing gears shall be prohibited to 
restrict their use in the taking of bottomfish.  
Except as may be otherwise authorized by law, it is 
unlawful for any person to take bottomfish with any 
trap, trawl, bottomfish longline or net; provided that 
scoop nets may be used to bring on board a vessel any 
bottomfish that has already been caught by authorized 
fishing gear.  

(b)  Except as may be otherwise authorized by 
law, it is unlawful for any person, while on board a 
vessel, to possess both bottomfish and any trap, 
trawl, bottomfish longline, or net other than scoop 
net or Kona crab net. [Eff 6/1/1998; 10/18/2010]  
(Auth:  HRS §187A-5)  (Imp: HRS §187A-5) 
 

§13-94-7  Non-commercial bag limits.  (a)  A 
limit on the number of bottomfish that may be taken 
for non-commercial purposes shall be established to 
conserve bottomfish resources. 

(b)  Unless otherwise authorized by law, it is 
unlawful for any person, to take or possess more than 
a combined total of five bottomfish per day.  [Eff  



 
 
 

94-5 

§13-94-8 
 
 

 
 
6/1/1998; am 10/18/2010]  (Auth:  HRS §187A-5)  (Imp: 
HRS §187A-5) 

 
§13-94-8  Bottomfish restricted fishing areas.  

(a)  The department will restrict fishing in certain 
areas to conserve the spawning populations of 
bottomfish. 

(b)  To aid enforcement of this section, the 
department intends to restrict all fishing for and 
possession of bottomfish within the restricted fishing 
areas.  It is unlawful for any person to take or 
possess bottomfish while in a vessel that is drifting 
or anchoring within any bottomfish restricted fishing 
area, except in times of emergency or as may be 
otherwise authorized by law. 

(c)  The department will gather and consider the 
following information when selecting the bottomfish 
restricted fishing areas: 

(1) Identify the fishing areas where spawning 
onaga and ehu are caught; 

(2) Restrict fishing in about twenty percent of 
the known fishing areas where spawning onaga 
and ehu are caught; 

(3) Distribute the bottomfish restricted fishing 
areas in the most effective manner to 
consider the potential benefits and limit 
negative impacts on bottomfish fishing 
opportunities; 

(4) Suggestions from bottomfish fishers 
statewide; and 

(5) Any other relevant information. 
 (d)  Due to the critical need of some bottomfish 
species for conservation measures, the department may 
need to respond quickly to establish or modify 
bottomfish restricted fishing areas.  The bottomfish 
restricted fishing areas shall be established or 
amended by formal board action at a publicly noticed 
meeting.  The bottomfish restricted fishing areas are 
attached at the end of this chapter as Exhibit A, 
entitled the "Bottomfish Restricted Fishing Areas 
(BRFA) 12/8/06," or as may be amended by subsequent 
board action and a copy of the amended Exhibit A shall 
be filed with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor.  
[Eff 6/1/1998; am 10/18/2010]  (Auth:  HRS §§187A-5, 



 
 
 

94-6 

§13-94-8 
 
 
 
 
188-53)  (Imp:  HRS §§187A-5, 188-53) 
 
 §13-94-9  Bottomfish fishing vessel 
identification number.  (a)  The department may 
register, and assign a bottomfish fishing vessel 
identification number to, any vessel used to fish for 
bottomfish.  The purpose of the number is to enable 
identification of vessels used to fish for bottomfish 
from a distance while on the open ocean.  The 
bottomfish fishing vessel identification number shall 
be valid for a one year period from the date 
registered, and must be annually renewed.  It is 
unlawful for the vessel owner to take bottomfish from 
a vessel with a vessel identification number that does 
not have current registration. 
 (b) It is unlawful for any person to take or 
possess bottomfish while on a vessel on the water 
without a bottomfish fishing vessel identification 
number assigned or approved by the department. 
 (c) The bottomfish fishing vessel identification 
number shall consist of the following vessel 
identification, in front of the letters "BF" added as 
a suffix: 

(1) A valid Division of Boating and Ocean 
Recreation vessel registration number issued 
and displayed pursuant to chapter 13-241; 

(2) A valid National Marine Fisheries Service 
permit number issued and displayed under the 
provisions set forth in Fishery Management 
Plans of the Western Pacific Regional 
Fishery Management Council pursuant to CFR 
Part 660 Subparts B through E; 

(3) A valid United States Coast Guard vessel 
documentation number issued pursuant to 46 
CFR 67; or 

(4) Any other such identification approved by 
the department. 

 (d) If the vessel identification, listed in 
subsection (c) above is not required to be displayed, 
then the vessel identification and the capital letters 
"BF", shall be displayed and clearly visible on both 
sides of the vessel, either near the top of the 
gunwales or on the superstructure.  Unless other 
specified, all characters in the bottomfish vessel  



 
 
 

94-7 

§13-94-11 
 
 
 
 
identification number shall be no less than six (6) 
inches high and three (3) inches wide in black or a 
contrasting solid color to the background.  [Eff 
6/1/1998; am 10/18/2010]  (Auth:  §187A-5)  (Imp:  
§187A-5) 
 
 §13-94-10  Control date.  (a)  There is 
established a control date to give prior notice of 
intent to possibly limit participation in the Main 
Hawaiian Islands commercial bottomfish fishery.  
Persons who begin fishing in the Main Hawaiian Islands 
commercial bottomfish fishery on or after the control 
date will not be assured continued participation if 
the department establishes a bottomfish limited entry 
program in the future.  The control date will be the 
original effective date of this chapter. 
 (b)  Nothing in this chapter shall commit the 
department to establish a bottomfish limited entry 
program in the future nor does it prevent the 
department from establishing another control date. 
[Eff: 6/1/1998]  (Auth:  HRS §187A-5)  (Imp:  HRS 
§187A-5) 
 
 §13-94-11  Bottomfish fishing seasons, other 
restrictions.  (a)  There is established an annual 
bottomfish fishing season for the taking of bottomfish 
in the main Hawaiian islands to prevent overfishing in 
this fishery. 
 (b) The board shall approve a closure of the 
fishing season for bottomfish in the state marine 
waters when closure is needed in order to match a 
federal closed season, or is dictated when a catch 
limit is reached either by a total fishing quota or by 
individual quotas, as determined and announced by the 
National Marine Fisheries Service. 
 (c) While a bottomfish fishing season is closed, 
it is unlawful for any person to fish for, possess, or 
sell bottomfish, or for any dealer to sell bottomfish, 
except as provided in section 13-94-14. 
 (d) When a bottomfish fishing season is open, 
any person may take, possess, and sell bottomfish, 
subject to the provisions of this chapter, and as may 
be otherwise provided by law.  [Eff 10/18/2010]  Auth:  
HRS §§187A-5, 187A-5.5, 187A-6, 189-6)  (Imp:  HRS  



 
 
 

94-8 

§13-94-11 
 
 
 
 
§§187A-5, 187A-5.5, 187A-6, 189-6) 
 
 §13-94-14  Exceptions.  (a)  Notwithstanding the 
provisions of subsection 13-94-11(d), while a 
bottomfish closed fishing season is in effect, a 
person with a valid federal bottomfish fishing permit 
for the Northwestern Hawaiian Islands federal waters, 
and a valid commercial marine license, may take and 
possess bottomfish from the above-described area. 
 (b) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection 
13-94-11(d), while a bottomfish closed fishing season 
is in effect, a person may sell bottomfish, with: 

(1) A valid federal bottomfish fishing permit 
for the Northwestern Hawaiian Islands 
federal waters, and a valid commercial 
marine license, provided that the bottomfish 
were caught from the waters of the above-
described area; 

(2) A valid special marine product license under 
section 13-74-42 and proper receipts as 
required under section 189-11, HRS, provided 
that the bottomfish were caught from the 
waters of the above-described areas or 
lawfully imported into the State; or 

(3) A valid aquaculture license under section 
13-74-43 or valid license to sell reared 
species under section 13-74-44. 

 (c) Persons issued a special activity permit 
pursuant to section 187A-6, HRS, or other exemptions 
provided by law, may be exempted from the provisions 
of this chapter.  [Eff 10/18/2010]  (Auth:  HRS 
§§187A-6, 189-6)  (Imp:  HRS §§187A-6, 189-6) 















VII. Administrative Matters 

A.  Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities   
and Programs in accordance with the Board’s Powers 
under Section 201M-5, Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), 
as follows: 

1. Proposed Appropriations Request for the 2020 
 Legislative  Session 

2. Launch of Board’s New Website 

3. Meetings with Board Members and State 
 Department Directors   


	SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD
	I. Call to Order
	II. Approval of July 18, 2019 Meeting Minutes
	III. Old Business – After Public Hearing
	A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments and the Small Business Statement After Public Hearing to Title 8, Department of Liquor Control, Subtitle 1, Liquor Commission, promulgated by Department of Liquor Control, County of Maui, as follows – Discussion Leader – Mary Albitz

	IV. New Business – Before Public Hearing
	A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR) Title 13 Chapter 234, Section 26, Fees and Charges, promulgated by Department of Land and Natural Resources (DLNR) – Discussion Leader – Mary Albitz

	V. Regulation for Review 
	VI.  Administrative Matters
	B. Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in accordance with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), as follows:

	VII. Next Meeting: Thursday, September 19, 2019, at 10:00 a.m., 235 South Beretania Street, Leiopapa A Kamehameha Building (State Office Tower), Conference Room 405, Honolulu, HI  96813
	VIII. Adjournment
	ADP3F9E.tmp
	III.  Old Business – After Public Hearing
	IV.  New Business – Before Public Hearing
	A.  Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments  to HAR Title 13 Chapter 234, Section 26, Fees and  Charges, promulgated by DLNR

	V.  Regulation for Review
	A.  Discussion and Action on Response from DLNR from the May 16, 2019 Board Meeting on Whether Bottomfish Restricted Fishing Areas Should be Opened and/or Disestablished under HAR Title 13 Chapter 94, Bottomfish Management
	A.  Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities   and Programs in accordance with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), as follows:


	DLNR 13-234 DOBOR Fees and Charges SBIS PrePH.pdf
	If the proposed rule affects small business and are not exempt as noted above, please provide a reasonable determination of the following:
	* * *

	DLNR 13-94 Bottomfish Management.pdf
	ch94.pdf
	Purpose
	Definitions
	Penalty
	Severability
	Bottomfish species
	Restricted bottomfish fishing gears
	Non-commercial bag limits
	Bottomfish restricted fishing areas
	Bottomfish fishing vessel identificationnumber
	Control date
	EXHIBIT A


	SBRRB-Agenda-August-2019-DiscLeaders.pdf
	SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD
	I. Call to Order
	II. Approval of July 18, 2019 Meeting Minutes
	III. Old Business – After Public Hearing
	A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments and the Small Business Statement After Public Hearing to Title 8, Department of Liquor Control, Subtitle 1, Liquor Commission, promulgated by Department of Liquor Control, County of Maui, as follows – Discussion Leader – Mary Albitz
	B. Re-Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to Part IV, Rules and Regulations Governing Commercial Boating Activities at County Beach Parks, Sections 30 to 36, promulgated by County of Kauai Department of Park and Recreations – Discussion Leader – Will Lydgate

	IV. New Business – Before Public Hearing
	A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR) Title 13 Chapter 234, Section 26, Fees and Charges, promulgated by Department of Land and Natural Resources (DLNR) – Discussion Leader – Mary Albitz

	V. Regulation for Review 
	VI.  Administrative Matters
	C. Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in accordance with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), as follows:

	VII. Next Meeting: Thursday, September 19, 2019, at 10:00 a.m., 235 South Beretania Street, Leiopapa A Kamehameha Building (State Office Tower), Conference Room 405, Honolulu, HI  96813
	VIII. Adjournment

	SBRRB-Agenda-Aug-2019-DiscLeaders.pdf
	SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD
	I. Call to Order
	II. Approval of July 18, 2019 Meeting Minutes
	III. Old Business – After Public Hearing
	A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments and the Small Business Statement After Public Hearing to Title 8, Department of Liquor Control, Subtitle 1, Liquor Commission, promulgated by Department of Liquor Control, County of Maui, as follows – Discussion Leader – Mary Albitz
	Old Business – Before Public Hearing
	A. Request by Mel Wills III, Holo Holo Charters, on behalf of the Hanalei Department of Land and Natural Resources Permitted Boaters for review of recommended revisions to the Proposed Amendments to Part IV, Rules and Regulations Governing Commercial Boating Activities at County Beach Parks, Sections 30 to 36, promulgated by County of Kauai Department of Parks and Recreation. – Discussion Leader – Will Lydgate

	New Business – Before Public Hearing
	A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR) Title 13 Chapter 234, Section 26, Fees and Charges, promulgated by Department of Land and Natural Resources (DLNR) – Discussion Leader – Mary Albitz

	VI. Regulation for Review 
	Administrative Matters
	A. Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in accordance with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, Hawaii Revised Statutes, as follows:

	VIII. Next Meeting: Thursday, September 19, 2019, at 10:00 a.m., 235 South Beretania Street, Leiopapa A Kamehameha Building (State Office Tower), Conference Room 405, Honolulu, HI  96813
	IX. Adjournment

	ADPDA6E.tmp
	III.  Old Business – After Public Hearing
	IV.  Old Business – Before Public Hearing
	A.  Request by Mel Wills III, Holo Holo Charters, on behalf of the Hanalei Department of Land and Natural Resources Permitted Boaters for review of recommended revisions to the Proposed Amendments to Part IV, Rules and Regulations Governing Commercial...

	V.  New Business – Before Public Hearing
	A.  Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments  to HAR Title 13 Chapter 234, Section 26, Fees and  Charges, promulgated by DLNR

	VI.  Regulation for Review
	A.  Discussion and Action on Response from DLNR from the May 16, 2019 Board Meeting on Whether Bottomfish Restricted Fishing Areas Should be Opened and/or Disestablished under HAR Title 13 Chapter 94, Bottomfish Management
	A.  Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities   and Programs in accordance with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), as follows:


	DLNR 13-234 DOBOR Fees and Charges SBIS PrePH.pdf
	If the proposed rule affects small business and are not exempt as noted above, please provide a reasonable determination of the following:
	* * *

	DLNR 13-94 Bottomfish Management.pdf
	ch94.pdf
	Purpose
	Definitions
	Penalty
	Severability
	Bottomfish species
	Restricted bottomfish fishing gears
	Non-commercial bag limits
	Bottomfish restricted fishing areas
	Bottomfish fishing vessel identificationnumber
	Control date
	EXHIBIT A



	Date: July 30, 2019
	Department or Agency: DLNR Div. of Boating & Ocean Recreation (DOBOR)
	Administrative Rule Title and Chapter: Title 13, Chapter 234, Section 26
	Chapter Name: Fees and Charges
	Contact PersonTitle: Todd Tashima/Legal Research Specialist
	Email: todd.h.tashima@hawaii.gov
	Phone: 587-0142
	pursuant to HRS 927: Yes
	If Yes provide details: Available at: http://dlnr.hawaii.gov/dobor/draft-rules
	New: Off
	Repeal: Off
	Amendment: On
	Compilation: Off
	II Will the proposed rules affect small business: Yes_2
	statute or ordinance: No_3
	IV Is the proposed rule being adopted pursuant to emergency rulemaking HRS 201M2a: No_4
	Text 1: Commercial ocean tour businesses and cruise ship companies will be affected by proposed fee increases in HAR Section 13-234-26.  Adverse effects would come from the increase in required fees.
	Text 2: See attachment.
	Text 2a: See attachment.
	Text 2b: See attachment.
	Text 3: Increased revenues will allow DOBOR to perform improvements, repairs, and maintenance for cruise ship facilities.
	Text 2c: See attachment.
	Text 2d: Calculation of passenger fees was determined by evaluating costs associated with DOBOR facilities that accommodate cruise ships and setting a fee amount that would allow DOBOR to break even.
	Text 4: DOBOR attempted to keep passenger fees as low as possible while still being able to recoup costs associated with cruise ship facilities.  Fees were changed to apply by facility so that DOBOR to better address higher traffic facilities.
	Text 5: DOBOR is not aware of any less restrictive alternatives that could be implemented in place of the proposed rules.
	Text 6: DOBOR considered a flexible method of compliance for small businesses and amended the language in HAR 13-234-26: small businesses embarking or disembarking passengers at a small boat harbor other than Lahaina small boat harbor would pay a lower rate.
	Text 7: DOBOR sent out notices to businesses in their billing statements and through email to inform them of plans to amend administrative rules regarding fees since October 2017.  DOBOR made draft rules available online at its website and also made desk copies available at all DOBOR district offices.
	Text 7a: See attachment.
	Text 8: N/A
	Text 8b: N/A
	Text 8a: N/A
	Text 8c: N/A
	Text 8d: N/A
	Text 8e: N/A


